
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  1 | 2 

 
 

Councilmembers 
Position No. 
1. Tod Gunther 
2. Barbara Ford 
3. William Birkes, Deputy Mayor 
4. Dave Harman 
5. Nicola McDonald 
6. Josh Penner 
7. Scott Drennen 

 

 
 

ORTING CITY COUNCIL  
Regular Business Meeting Agenda 

Multi-Purpose Center 
202 Washington Avenue S, Orting, WA 

 
March 30, 2016 

7 p.m. 
 

Audience members are welcome to speak on any topic on the agenda after Councilmembers have finished their discussion. 
 

Mayor Joachim Pestinger 
 

7:00 P.M. - CALL MEETING TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
 
REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

• Minutes of March 9, 2016 
• Payroll and Claims Warrants 

Motion:  Move to approve Consent Agenda as prepared. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are 
encouraged to do so at this time.  When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your 
name and address for the record.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes. Thank you for attending. 

 
COMMISSION REPORTS: 

• Parks Commission 
• Planning Commission 

 
COMMITTEE AND COUNCIL STANDING REPORTS: 
  Council Standing Committees and other Reports 

• Rules - CM Harman/CM Drennen 
• Transportation – CM Penner/CM McDonald 
• Emergency Preparedness – CM Drennen/CM Ford 
• Mayor Report – Mayor Pestinger 
• Miscellaneous activity reports, i.e. PSRC, special meetings, etc. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
1) AB16-22 – CLOSED RECORD HEARING-Village Green Ph.1 Div. 7 ● Roger Wagoner 

Motion:  Move to approve or deny the Planning Commission recommendation on the Final 
Plat Phasing submittal of Village Green, Phase 1-Division 7. 

 
2) AB16-23 – PUBLIC HEARING- Animal License Fee Changes ● CM Ford 
 
3) AB16-24 - PUBLIC HEARING- SW Connector ● CM Penner 

 
 



Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  2 | 2 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
 

● Emergency Evacuation Bridge System ● CM Drennen 
 

4) AB16-25 - Resolution No. 2016-17, Amending City Facility Fees ● CM Ford               
   Motion: to adopt Resolution No. 2016-17, adopting a Use Fee schedule for City Facilities and 
   a Service Fee schedule for city services for Special Events. 

 
5) AB16-26 - Ordinance No. 2016-982, Amending City Facility Rentals Code ● CM Ford     

      Motion: to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-982, relating to use rates for use of City Facilities;   
   amending Orting Municipal Code Section 3-8-5A; 3-8-5B4 and repealing section 3-8-5C4. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 

 
6) AB16-27 - Vehicle Maintenance RFP, Approval of Vendor ● CM Drennen 

Motion: to approve Korum Ford as the vehicle maintenance service provider and request 
that the Mayor enter into contract negotiations. 
 

7) AB16-28 – RFP Expense for Economic Development ● City Administrator Bethune 
 

8) AB16-29 – 2015 TBD Annual Report ● CM Penner 
Motion: to approve the 2015 Transportation Benefit District Annual report. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are 
encouraged to do so at this time.  When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your 
name and address for the record.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes. Thank you for attending. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
    Motion:  Move to Adjourn. 
 

Upcoming Meetings: 
Next Regular Meeting:  April 13, 2016 (PSB) 

 
 



1 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  9 ,  2 0 1 6  
 

 
 
 

Mayor Joachim Pestinger called the meeting to order with the flag salute at 7:00 pm in the 
Orting Public Safety Building.  Roll call found in attendance Deputy Mayor William Birkes, 
Councilmembers Scott Drennen, Barbara Ford, Josh Penner, Tod Gunther, Dave Harman and 
Nicola McDonald. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 
 
City Employees Mark Bethune, City Administrator 

Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
Bill Drake, Police Chief 
Scott Larson, Treasurer 

 
Professional 
Representatives 

Jay Long, Attorney – Kenyon Disend 
Mallory Miller, Engineer – Parametrix 

 
  
 Councilmember Ford moved to excuse Councilmember Harman 

from the meeting.  Second by Councilmember McDonald. Motion 
carried (6-0). 

 

 
Visitors (signed in) Corinne Reiquam Scott Reiquam 
 Dave Bishop Sheri Greene 
 John Aldrich  
 
 Mayor Pestinger noted there is a Tahoma to Tacoma Trailhead 

postcard in front of Council and invited them to attend the network 
meeting on Thursday, March 24th.  
 
Mayor Pestinger introduce Bonney Lake Councilmember Justin 
Evans. Mr. Evans spoke regarding the PCRC position that is open 
for the Zoo Trek Board and asked for the Mayors and Councils 
support. 

  
REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
 There were no request made. 
  

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 Councilmember Ford moved to approve the Consent Agenda as 

prepared.  Second by Councilmember Gunther.  Motion carried (6-0). 
 

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
 
 

Doug Bishop passed along what a great job the Public Works crew 
did on the sidewalk in front of his house; discussed the City 

ORTING CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
Public Safety Building, 401 Washington Ave. SE 

MARCH 9, 2016 



 
 

2 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  9 , ,  2 0 1 6  
 

 Administrator getting the flag replaced and back up in the park; 
discussed the Mt. Rainier Emergency meeting. 

 
PRESENTATIONS:  (7:07) 
                                                  
Buxton Company – 
Economic Development 
● Jacob Davis 

Mr. Davis presented Council with software from Buxton Company 
that will help the City with Economic Development. 

 Councilmembers asked City Administrator Bethune to come back 
at the March 30th Council meeting on the budget impact of a RFQ 
for the possibility of hiring a marketing firm. 

  
COMMISSION REPORTS:   
 
Parks Commission Commissioner Aldrich noted the parks within the City and the 

issues the Commission cited as needing fixed/updated within 
those parks. 

  
Planning Commission Commissioner Hoyt discussed signage concerns regarding 

blockage/maintenance; discussed ADR and the colors for the 
Wine/Spirits Liquor store; he also noted that the Planning 
Commission recommended Final Plat on the Village Green 
agenda item with conditions; he noted that the Commission is still 
updating the livestock ordinance and they are currently doing 
more research. 

 
COMMITTEE AND STANDING REPORTS:  (8:03) 
 
Public Works Councilmember McDonald reported on the on-going items, 

discussed the Public Works replacement vehicles as well as the 
fleet maintenance and finishing up the RFP process. 

 
Finance  Councilmember Ford gave a financial review on the budget. 
 
Public Safety Councilmember Gunther discussed the police replacement 

vehicles.  
 
Chief Drake discussed the Military SWAT vehicle that is being 
offered at no cost to the city.  
 
After discussion, Council asked City Administrator Bethune to 
look at the fiscal impact of taking the SWAT vehicle such as - 
costs of storage, maintenance training/cost, and required staff 
training/cost. 

 
Mayor Report Mayor Pestinger reported on the explosion that happened in 

Seattle earlier that day and reminded folks that if they smell gas, 
to report it immediately and reminded them to learn how to turn 
their gas off.  He noted he attended the Chamber of Commerce 
meeting which discussed social media; discussed a Christmas 
Bazaar and wondered if the Farmers Market would like to take 



 
 

3 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  9 , ,  2 0 1 6  
 

that on; he also reported that they are looking at a new flag pole 
as the mechanism for the one in the park is in bad shape and 
during wind storms the pole bends significantly. 

  
Miscellaneous Councilmember Ford mentioned that the Police Department is 

handing out free gun locks to citizens. 
 
 
CLOSED RECORD HEARING:  (8:41) 
 
AB16-18 –Closed 
Record Hearing- Village 
Green, Ph. 1 Div. 7 
Final Plat 

Mayor Pestinger opened the closed record hearing at 8:41 p.m. 
 
Mr. Roger Wagoner from BHC Consultants gave the history on the 
project; discussed completion of improvements and the Planning 
Commission recommendation with conditional approval. He noted 
the fees will be due before final plat can be recorded and noted the 
city has not arrived at a conclusion regarding that subject and 
asked Council to postpone until the March 30th  meeting to 
guarantee payment. 
 
Mayor Pestinger closed the closed record hearing at 8:45 p.m. 

 It was Council’s consensus to have another Closed Record Hearing 
at the March 30th Council meeting.  

 
OLD BUSINESS:  (8:45) 
 
Emergency Evacuation 
Bridge System 

Councilmember Drennen reported the group met on March 4th and 
discussed a citizens concern regarding the lahar zone, he noted 
more education is needed. He also discussed the ROW 
acquisition is still in process. Discussion also took place regarding 
the city-wide Evacuation Drill that is being scheduled for May 20th. 

  
AB16-19 - Resolution 
No. 2016-17, Amending 
City Facility Fees 

This item was tabled until the March 30, 2016 meeting. 

  
AB16-20 - Ordinance 
No. 2016-982, Amending 
City Facility Rentals 
Code 

This item was tabled until the March 30, 2016 meeting. 

  
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
AB16-21 – 
Transportation Plan 
Update, Phase 1  

Councilmember McDonald deferred to Councilmember 
Penner who reported the last plan passed in 2005. He noted 
this plan being a “big budget item” and discussed the two 
phases. 

 
 Councilmember Ford moved to approve the Scope and Budget for 

Phase 1 of the Transportation Plan Update provided by Parametrix.  
Second by Councilmember Drennen. Motion carried (6-0). 



 
 

4 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  M a r c h  9 , ,  2 0 1 6  
 

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
 Chris Hopfauf reminded everyone that Saturday, March 12th was 

Sam Colorossi Appreciation Day and invited everyone to come out 
from 1-4 p.m. at the BBQ area in the City Park to honor Sam 
Colorossi. 

ADJOURN: 
 Councilmember Penner moved to adjourn.  Second by 

Councilmember McDonald.  Motion carried (6-0). 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
               ____________________________                          ____________________________ 
                        Joachim Pestinger, Mayor                                 Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 









































- 1 -  

City Of Orting 
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-22 
SUBJECT: Close Record Hearing – 
Village Green, Phase One-Division 7, 
Final Planned Development and Plat 

Agenda Item #: AB16-22 
For Agenda of: 03/30/16 
Department:     Planning 

Date Submitted: 02/26/16 
 

Orting Staff & Professional 
Representatives 

 

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0  
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0  
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0  
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner X 
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor ☐Councilmember ☐Committee Chair ☒City Administrator 

 
Attachments: City of Orting Staff Report 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The applicant requests Final Plat approval for Phase 1 Division 7 of the subject development, pursuant 
to OMC 12-6.  The initial Village Green preliminary subdivision (PP01-03) was approved by the Orting 
City Council in 1993.  Divisions 1, 2, 3 and 5 of that subdivision were constructed.  In 2001, the remaining 
divisions (4, 6, 7 and 8) were redesigned and approved as a combined Preliminary Planned Development 
(PD01-01) and Subdivision (PP02-01).  In 2016, Mitchell Development requested approval to phase final 
platting of Division 7 in two sections.  Phase 1 will have 32 single family lots and Phase 2 (to be 
approved at a later date) will have 45 single family lots.  No change in density from the approved 77 
units is proposed.  The Administration approved the minor amendment for phasing on February 3, 2016.  
This includes the construction of Williams Street NW and Van Ogle Lane NW as a “loop”.  Lots 31 and 32 
will be accessed by a private easement extending from the end of Van Ogle Lane NW.  The average lot 
size is 7,550 square feet.  This recommendation pertains only to the Phase 1 final plat for 32 lots of the 
Division. 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to approve/deny the Planning 
Commission recommendation on the Final Plat phasing submittal of 
Village Green, Division 7, Phase One. 

 



 
 Village Green Development #PD01-01 & PP02-01 Page 1 of 4 
 Final Plat Approval – Phase 1, Division 7 
 Staff Report - February 10, 2016 

CITY OF ORTING STAFF REPORT  
VILLAGE GREEN PHASE ONE-DIVISION 7 (# PD-1-01 & PP02-01) 

DIVISION 7 FINAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AND PLAT 
 
APPLICANT: AHBL  
   2215 North 30th Street, Suite 300 
   Tacoma, WA 98043 
 
OWNER:  Mitchell Development, LLC 
   910 Traffic Avenue 
   Sumner, WA 98390 
 
PROPERTY LOCATION: 
 
Between Washington Ave. N (SR162) and the Puyallup River, south of Village Green 
Divisions 1, 2, 3 and 5, north of Ptarmigan Ridge School. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: 
 
The applicant requests Final Plat approval for Phase 1 Division 7 of the subject 
development, pursuant to OMC 12-6.   
 
The initial Village Green preliminary subdivision (PP01-03) was approved by the Orting 
City Council in 1993.  Divisions 1,2,3 and 5 of that subdivision were constructed.  In 
2001, the remaining divisions (4,6,7 and 8) were redesigned and approved as a combined 
Preliminary Planned Development (PD01-01) and Subdivision (PP02-01).  In 2016, 
Mitchell Development requested approval to phase final platting of Division 7 in two 
sections.  Phase 1 will have 32 single family lots and Phase 2 (to be approved at a later 
date) will have 45 single family lots.  No change in density from the approved 77 units is 
proposed.  The Administration approved the minor amendment for phasing on February 
3, 2016.  This includes the construction of Williams Street NW and Van Ogle Lane NW 
as a “loop”.  Lots 31 and 32 will be accessed by a private easement extending from the 
end of Van Ogle Lane NW.  The average lot size is 7,550 square feet.  This 
recommendation pertains only to the Phase 1 final plat for 32 lots of the Division. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW: 
 
Final planned developments and final plats are “Type 4” permits subject to approval by 
the City Council.  Per Section 12-6-4 OMC, final approvals are based on 
recommendations by the Planning Commission and City Engineer. 
 
CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL: 
 
Per 12-6-5 OMC, final approval shall be approved if the proposal: 
 



 
 Village Green Development #PD01-01 & PP02-01 Page 2 of 4 
 Final Plat Approval – Phase 1, Division 7 
 Staff Report - February 10, 2016 

A. Meets approval requirements as set forth in chapter 8 (see findings below); 
B. Conforms to the preliminary approval conditions; 
C. Meets other applicable requirements such as state laws; and 
D. Has been contained in written findings of fact by the City Council. 

 
FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
A. Phase 1 Meets Plat Approval Requirements:  Meets all general requirements for plat 

approval as set forth in Chapter 8 of this Title; 
 
OMC 12-8-1: 
· Land Use Controls:  Complies 
· Dedications:  Dedications of right of way to City – to be completed prior to bill of 

sale. 
· Dedication of Public Park:  Not applicable for this phase. 
· Release From Damages:  Complies 
· Flood, Inundation or Swamp Conditions:  Not applicable for this phase. 
· Bonds:  Maintenance bond to be issued prior to bill of sale. 
· Payment of General Facilities Charges 

 
OMC 12-8-2: 
Final Plat Certificate:  Complies 
 
OMC 12-8-3: 
General Filing Requirements:  Complies 
 
OMC 12-8-4: 
Compliance With Public Works Standards:  Complies 
 

B. Conforms to Preliminary Plat Approval:  Conforms to all terms of the preliminary 
plat approval; 
Specific mitigations for land use, schools, transportation, utilities and parks were 
required in the “Requirements and Conditions” of the original Preliminary Planned 
Development and Plat approval (PD01-01 & PP02-01) including payment of impact 
fees for schools, parks and traffic at the time of building permit issuance.  Following 
is a summary of remaining conditions of approval and their current status: 

 
1. Land Use 

a. Restrict all residential development to that which lies outside designated 
wetlands and their buffers, and shorelines protected by the Shorelines 
Management Program. 
 

Complies. 

 



 
 Village Green Development #PD01-01 & PP02-01 Page 3 of 4 
 Final Plat Approval – Phase 1, Division 7 
 Staff Report - February 10, 2016 

2. Transportation 
Does not apply 

 
3. Design 

a. All design plans and specifications, to include erosion control, grading and 
filling, road, water, sanitary and storm sewer, landscaping and park facilities, 
shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer and City Council prior 
to the start of construction. 

 
Completed. 

 
b. The developer and the City shall enter into a Developer Extension Agreement 

prior to construction of any type. 
 

Completed. 
 

4. Public Utilities 
 

a. Water 
1. All water infrastructure projects shall be consistent with the Water 

Comprehensive Plan currently being developed by the City of Orting. 
 

The City of Orting Water System Plan was adopted by the City in 2009.  
The current phase meets the requirements of this plan.   

 
b. Sanitary Sewer 

1. All sanitary sewer infrastructure projects shall be consistent with the City 
of Orting General Sewer Plan and the Washington State Department of 
Ecology Criteria for Sewer Works Design. 

 
Complies. 

 
c. Storm Sewer 

1. The developer shall construct a storm sewer system to serve each phase of 
development prior to the issuance of any certificates of occupancy for 
homes to be built within said phases. 

 
Completed. 
 

C. Meets Other Applicable Requirements:  Meets the requirements of chapter 58.17 
RCW, other applicable State laws, this Title, Title 9, Chapter 4 of this code, and any 
other applicable City Ordinances which were in effect at the time of preliminary 
approval. 

 



 
 Village Green Development #PD01-01 & PP02-01 Page 4 of 4 
 Final Plat Approval – Phase 1, Division 7 
 Staff Report - February 10, 2016 

Phase 1 of Division 7 complies with all other applicable requirements. 
 
D. Approval and Inscription:  The City Council shall make written findings of fact 

relating to its decision on the final plat, and if approved, shall suitably inscribe and 
execute its written approval on the face of the plat. 

 
To be completed after Council approval. 

 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

Staff recommends Commission recommendation of the proposal as described in this 
report. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION PROCEDURE 
The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on during a regular meeting at 
the Orting Public Safety Building on a date to be determined.  Staff will present this 
report and be available for questions. 
The Planning Commission will discuss the proposal and the staff report and will take 
public testimony. After deliberation, the Commission may move to recommend 
approval of the proposal; to deny the proposal; or to return the proposal for further 
clarification.   

 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-23 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING ONLY - Animal 
License Fee Changes 

Agenda Item #:  AB16-23  
For Agenda of: 03/30/16  
Department: Finance 
Date Submitted:  03/23/16   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments:  
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
The state auditor is not requiring the city to track exact hours of staff in animal control.  An analysis of 
time sheets indicates the city’s labor/benefits/supplies expense is about $15,000 annually.  The 
revenue from license fees was about $5,700 and $2,300 in fines for 2015.  Currently the city charges 
approximately ¼ the license fees of comparable cities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   PUBLIC HEARING ONLY. 
 
 
 
 

 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-24 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Southwest 
Connector Alignment Alternatives 

Agenda Item #:   AB16-24  
For Agenda of: 3/30/2016 
Department:   Planning  
Date Submitted: 3/24/2016 

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0 
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0  
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 410-594-31-41-38 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford x 
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
The City has received a residential plat application (Bridgewater Plat) for the property shown on the 
attached figure. This plat is directly in conflict with the designed Southwest Connector/Whitehawk 
Extension Project. In the City’s 2005 update of the 2030 Transportation Plan, the need was identified 
for an additional north-south route in the Orting area to alleviate traffic congestion and delays along 
SR 162 and Calistoga Street West and at the intersection of the two road ways. In 2006/2007, two 
separate studies were performed to identify the best route and termination points. During this time 
the extension of Whitehawk Blvd NW connecting to Calistoga Street West at Skinner Way SW was 
selected. The 90% design was funded by the City and performed by Parametrix. The purpose of this 
public hearing is to discuss the three alternatives (A, B, and C) which are extensions of Whitehawk Blvd 
NW. JC Hungerford will give a brief presentation prior to the hearing. 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   PUBLIC HEARING ONLY. 
 

 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-25 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2016-17, 
adopting a Use Fee Schedule for City 
Facilities and a Service Fee Schedule for 
Special Events 

Agenda Item #:   AB16-25  
For Agenda of:  3/30/16  
Department:     
Date Submitted:  2/17/16  

 
Orting Staff & Professional 

Representatives 
 

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek X 
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Original Resolution No. 2011-12 (for reference); Resolution No. 2016-17 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
Review of the current facility rental rates and policy revealed the need to amend rates and policy to 
achieve better financial performance and meet citizen needs.  The new rates are available to all 
individuals/groups including non-profits and now reflect appropriate rates for all seven days of the 
week. Amendments made from last Council meeting 2/24 including the elimination of the in-city vs no 
in-city nonprofits and standardizing deposits.  
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Vetted and approved for recommendation 
by the Community and Governmental Affairs Committee. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 2016-17, 
adopting a Use Fee schedule for City Facilities and a Service Fee 
schedule for city services for Special Events. 
 

 



ORIG
IN

AL R
ESOLU

TIO
N- F

OR R
EFERENCE



ORIG
IN

AL R
ESOLU

TIO
N- F

OR R
EFERENCE



ORIG
IN

AL R
ESOLU

TIO
N- F

OR R
EFERENCE



- 1 - 
 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-17 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 

WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A USE FEE SCHEDULE FOR 
CITY FACILITIES AND A SERVICE FEE SCHEDULE FOR 
CITY SERVICES FOR SPECIAL EVENTS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has previously codified its use fee schedule for city facilities at 
chapter 3-8 of the Orting Municipal Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to amend its current “Use Fee Schedule for City Facilities 
and Service Fee Schedule” by resolution of the City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to establish a fee schedule for use of City athletic fields and 
provisioning of City services for special events; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Adoption of Use Fee Schedule.  The City Council does hereby adopt the 
following user fee schedule for use of City facilities: 
 

A.  Multi-Purpose Center.  The following use fees shall be charged for the use of the City’s 
Multi-Purpose Center (the “MPC”): 

Daily Rate       Daily Rate       Half Day* 
                                                                                            M-F                Weekend         Weekend 
1. Non-resident rate $200     $250             $125 

2. Resident rate  $150   $200            $100 

3. Multiple consecutive days use shall be charged at 50% 
    of the daily rate after the first full day. 
4. Non-profit (must show proof of non-profit status)                           $20   $100              $50 

 
*Half Day Rate is a maximum 4 hours.   
   
  

B.  Refundable Deposits (OMC 3-8-5)  
                    MPC  Covered Facilities 

1.  Resident  $150.00  $50  
2. Non-Resident  $150.00  $50   
3. Non-Profit $150.00  $50   
4. All Users when Serving Alcohol  $8300.00  NA 



- 2 - 
 

 
 

C. Covered Facilities.  The following use fees shall be charged for the use of covered 
facilities other than Orting Station Facility (North Park Building): 
 
 1.  Non-Resident rate    $60.00 per time slot1 

 2.  Resident rate    $30.00 per time slot1 

 3.  Non-profit rate    $20.00 per time slot1 

 
Note 1:  Time Slot shall mean a calendar day or, subject to need and availability, any block of 
time during a calendar day that is reserved for the user. 

  
D.  Orting Station.  The following use fees shall be charged for the use of Orting Station 

Facility: 
 
 1.  Resident rate    $100.00 per time slot2 

 2.  Non-Resident rate    $200.00 per time slot2 

 3.  Non-Profit rate    $50.00 per time slot2 

  
Note 2:  Time Slot shall mean a calendar day or, subject to need and availability, any block of 
time during a calendar day that is reserved for the user.  

 
E.  Athletic Fields. (2 Hour Time Slots): 
 

Gratzer Park (Big Field) - (Youth/Adult Softball & Baseball) 
Gratzer Park (Small Field) - (Youth/Adult Softball) 
Gratzer Park (Small Field) - (Youth Baseball) 
Calistoga Park - (Youth Baseball & Softball) 
 
HOURLY RATES 
    Resident  Non-Resident   Non-Profit 
YOUTH     $20     $24      $10 
ADULT     $28     $34      $14 
NOTE: 2 hour minimum charge for all rentals. 
 
TOURNAMENT RATES** 
    Resident  Non-Resident   Non-Profit 
2 DAY      $600     $720      $300 
2 DAY HOLIDAY    $725     $875      $375 
1 DAY      $300     $375      $200 
1 DAY HOLIDAY    $500     $585      $250 
**Holiday rates are for tournaments hosted on Memorial Day Weekend, 4th of July and Labor 
Day Weekend.  NOTE: Tournament rate includes two field preparations per day. 
 
ADDITIONAL ITEMS 
GAME PREP   $25 each prep (includes dragging, lining, bases)     
PORTABLE MOUNDS        $25 per day 
 
All concessions must be approved by the Orting Parks and Recreation Department. 



- 3 - 
 

 
F. Special Events.  The following fee schedule shall apply to special events:   
 

1.  Special Event Permit Rate Option A   $200.00 per event 
     (City Services Included)3 
 

Note 3:  Special event permit rate option “A” includes the rates for city facility usage of any or all 
of the following city facilities: Gazebo, BBQ Area, Orting Station and the MPC.  This fee also 
includes the following services, if requested or required, road closures with detour signs, barricades, 
cones, dumpster, 2 port potties, 1 public works staff person for up to 8 hours for preparation and for 
clean up during the event, spider boxes, and electricity.  Also includes putting up and taking down 
of the event banner (if applicable).  Special events requiring additional city services or city services 
in excess of the above service levels will be subject to additional city service.  Athletic fields are not 
included but are subject to Athletic Field rates in section E above. 

 
2.   Vendor Blanket Permit.4  $100.00 per event 
 

Note 4:  Permit to cover all vendors participating in an event. 
 

3.   Vendor One Day Event Permits.   $25.00 designated one day 
 
4. Individual City Service Rates.  The following individual services rates apply to 

city services requested by an individual user or event organizer.     
 
  1 Public Work Staff    $50.00 per hour 
  1 Police Officer    $75.00 per hour 
  Dumpster     $20.00 per event 
  2 Port potties (Deliver/Pick Up/Clean) $150.00 per event 
  Electricity/Spider Boxes   $50.00 per event 
  Barricades/Cones/Signage   $50.00 per event 
  Street Sweeper (man power/Vehicle)  $95.00 per hour 
  Portable Trailer Sign (15 gal/48 hrs @$4) $50.00 per trailer/per day 
  Banner at Leber (Put Up and Take Down) $35.00 per event 
  Banner at Whitesell (Put Up and Take Down) $55.00 per event 

 
G.  Non-Profits.  Non-profit organizations, to qualify for a reduced user rate, must provide 

proof of non-profit status at the time of application.   
 

 H.  Residents.  To qualify for the resident rate, applicants must provide proof of current 
residency within the corporate boundaries of the City. 
 
 Section 2.   Amended Fee Schedule for Use of City Facilities.  This amended “Use Fee 
Schedule for City Facilities and Service Fee Schedule for City Services for Special Events” repeals 
and supersedes Resolution No. 2011-12.  
 
 
 
 
 



- 4 - 
 

 
 
 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON 
THE 30TH DAY OF MARCH, 2016. 
 
 
 
       CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Joachim Pestinger, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
John P. Long, Jr. 
Kenyon Disend, PLLC 
City Attorney 
 
 



- 1 -  

City Of Orting 
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-26 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2016-982, 
relating to use rates for use of City 
Facilities; amending OMC 

Agenda Item #: AB16-26 
For Agenda of: 03/30/16 
Department:  

Date Submitted: 2/17/16 
 

Orting Staff & Professional 
Representatives 

 

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0  
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0  
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0  
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek X 
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor ☐Councilmember ☒Committee Chair ☐City Administrator 

 
Attachments: Ordinance No. 2016-982 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

 
This is a housekeeping item to remove unnecessary language from ordinance. The new fee template 
has been amended allows for use by all applicants seven days a week.  Additional amendments have 
been made following the Council meeting of Feb 24 including standardizing deposits, reduced 
alcoholic beverage deposit but adding liability insurance. 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: The Community and Government Affairs 
Committee discussed at their meeting and recommends approval. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Ordinance No. 2016-982, 
relating to use rates for use of Facilities; amending Orting Municipal 
Code Section 3-8-5A, 3-8-5B4 and repealing section 3-8-5C4. 

 



- 1 -  

 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-982 
 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO USE RATES FOR 
USE OF CITY FACILITIES; AMENDING OMC 
SECTION 3-8-5A, 3-8-5B4; REPEALING SECTION     
3-8-5C4; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City has previously adopted use fees for City facilities which have been 
codified at Ch. 3-08 of the Orting Municipal Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to amend Section 3-8-5A, 3-8-5B4 and repeal section        

3-8-5C4 regarding use fees and deposits by a nonprofit organization; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section  1.   Amendment  of  Section  3-8-5A, B4, C4  OMC  –  Multi-Purpose Center 
(MPC) and Covered Park Facilities ( Deposit Required and Use  Fee  and  Deposit 
Waived. 

Section 3-8-5B4 and C4 of the Orting Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

A. MPC and Covered Park Facilities Deposit Required: Except as provided below, all 
groups using the city's Multi-Purpose Center MPC and Covered Park Facilities shall be 
required to make a refundable deposit at the time of application for use of the MPC and 
Covered Park Facilities. The deposit shall be refunded within five (5) business days 
provided that reasonable care has been exercised in the use of the MPC and Covered Park 
Facilities, no part of the MPC and Covered Park Facilities has have been damaged, and the 
MPC and Covered Park Facilities is are left in a clean and orderly condition. 

 
B. Alcoholic Beverages Served – Additional Deposit and Insurance Requirement: when 
serving alcoholic beverages users shall pay an additional deposit and obtain liability 
insurance applicable to such an event with a minimum $1,000,000 per occurrence 
coverage.  Alcoholic beverage consumption on City property is regulated by section 
8.6.4 of the Orting Municipal Code. 
 
C. Use Fee and Deposit Waived: Except as provided below, no use fee or deposit shall be 
required for the following users or uses of a city facility: 

1. Use by the city of Orting for official purposes, including, without limitation, Orting 



- 2 -  

parks and recreation programs; 

2. Limited use by state or local governmental agencies for official government purposes; 

3. Use by any person, association, partnership, organization, company, or corporation for 
activities or events that are funded or sponsored in whole or in part by the city of Orting; 
or 
4. Use by a nonprofit organization to provide social services that are available to residents 
of Orting; provided that, no fee is charged for attendance at the event/activity utilizing city 
facility and proof of nonprofit status is provided at the time of application. The user 
identified in this subsection B4 (nonprofit) shall not be exempt from paying use fees and 
deposits for use of a city facility when the use includes any portion of the hours from five 
o'clock (5:00) P.M. Friday through eight o'clock (8:00) A.M. Monday. (Ord. 919, 11-30- 2011) 

Section 2. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or otherwise 
invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state or federal law 
or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage and 

publication as required by law. 
 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON 
THE 30TH DAY OF MARCH, 2016. 

 
CITY OF ORTING 

 
 
 
 

 

Joachim Pestinger, Mayor 
 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

John P. Long, Jr. 
Kenyon Disend PLLC 



- 3 -  

City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 03/30/2016 
Passed by the City Council: 03/30/2016 
Ordinance No. 2016-982 
Date of Publication: 04/01/2016 
Effective Date: 04/11/2016 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-27 
SUBJECT: Vehicle Maintenance RFP Vendor 
Recommendation 

Agenda Item #:   AB16-27  
For Agenda of:  03/30/16  
Department:  PW and Police  
Date Submitted: 03/23/16   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: enter a timeline if applicable 
Finance Director, (Vacant)  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☒Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: RFP Decision Process and Results, Spreadsheet 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
 
Staff and Councilmember Drennen have completed a review and scoring of applicants to be the vehicle 
maintenance service for the City.  Korum Ford is the recommended vendor.  If Council approves the 
vendor the next step will be to complete a contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Ad Hoc Committee reviewed applicants. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to approve Korum Ford as the vehicle 
maintenance service provider and request that the Mayor enter into 
contract negotiations. 

 



Decision Making Process for the Choosing of the Vehicle Maintenance Vendor 

· The Request for Proposal (RFP) was advertised and released on 1/5/16.  The City 
Administrator hand delivered about 30 RFP’s to local auto-mechanic shops within about 
a 12 mile radius. 

· Two vendors made proposals, Korum Ford and Goodyear Tire Center, both of Puyallup. 
· The proposals were scored independently by the City Administrator, the Public Works 

Director, the Chief of Police, and Councilmember Scott Drennen.   
· Korum Ford received the highest score for the application phase. 
· Oral interviews were conducted by the same scoring team (minus the police chief) on 

March 4th, 2016.  The review team agreed that both vendors would meet the city’s needs 
but that Korum Ford was the best choice.  Korum Ford had superior scores and oral board 
responses for: 

o Response ready vehicle maintenance, Korum was more connected to the latest 
technologies of the vehicles used by the city in particular the Police fleet. This 
would help them to correct factory related issues early helping giving them an 
edge with response readiness for our fleet.  

o Risk aversion with the assurance of OEM level maintenance and parts. 
o Warranty assistance, we would be in a better position to get assistance for 

catastrophic failure (i.e. engine failure outside of the warranty period) when the 
maintenance services were performed by the dealer. 

o Ford’s 60pt inspection with each visit will help us to make decisions with 
budgeting our fleet maintenance. 

o Most qualified staff 
o Superior training program for mechanics 
o Better facility security with indoor storage of police cars 
o Potentially more long term stability 
o Better data base ability to track city vehicles and maintenance with service 

reminders 
o Already providing full services for a municipality (Bonney Lake). 
o Lower cost regular maintenance 

 

 

 

 

 



RFP - Vehicle Maintenance 
Reviewer: Bethune, Drennen, Kaelin, Drake

Responsiveness of written Proposal 40% (40 points) Good Year Ford
1. Meets functional and technical requirements of the RFP. (0-4) 12.5 15
2. Clarity, completeness of proposal (0-4) 12.25 15
3. Demonstrated quality of service (0-4) 12.5 16
4. Reference Checks (0-4) 12 12
5. Supplemental Questionare (0-4) 12.75 14

Total Points 62 72
Total Points X 2 124 144

Price - 50% (50 Points) Good Year Ford
1. Service A Expense (0-4) 11.75 15.8
2. Service B Expense(0-4) 11.75 15.8
3. Service C Expense(0-4) 15.75 11.5
4. Hourly Labor Rate (0-4) 14.75 11.6

Total Points 54 54.7
Total Points X 3 162 164.1

Ability, Experience, Financial Resources** 10% (10 Points) Good Year Ford
1. Proposer's evidence of stability. (0-4) 15.8 16
2. Proximity to City (0-4) 15 11.75
3. Experience/Quality of Contact Representative. (0-4) 14.8 15
4. Hours of Operations  (0-4) 14.7 14.9
5. Qualified Personnel  (0-4) 12.5 16
6. Training Program for mechanics (0-4) 12.5 13
7. Capabilities to provide services of this nature, size, and scope. (0-4) 12 16
8. Complaints (Better Business Bureau) (0-4) 15.5 12.5
9. Experience working with municipaities (0-4) 12 14.75

Total Points 124.8 129.9
Total Points X .3 33.70 38.97

Final Total Points 320 347

Scoring 0-4
0- Did not address Issue
1- Addressed issue but shows no ability to meet city need.
2- Some ability but probably insufficient  to address issue (high expense)
3- Average ability - will meet need at competent level (average expense)
4- Superior ability to meet need (low cost).



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-28 
SUBJECT: Economic Development RFP 

Agenda Item #:   AB16-28  
For Agenda of:  3/30/16  
Department:     
Date Submitted:  3/23/16  

 
Orting Staff & Professional 

Representatives 
 

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Proposed RFP 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
Attached is a proposed RFP.  Staff are still trying to determine how to advertise nationally and what 
the cost would be. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  No expected motion at this time. 
 

 



Request for Proposal 
 

Date Issued: 
 
Proposal Submittal Date: 
 
The City is soliciting proposals from firms/individuals interested in developing a retail/commercial 
development strategy that maximizes the retail and other commercial business potential for the City as 
well as provides business retention tools and an analytic portal to customize reports. 
 
The successful firm/individual will conduct an assessment of the City’s market trade area and profile the 
customer’s buying habits.   The results of the assessment will be used to guide the elected officials and 
staff of the City to make decisions and commitments to grow the City’s retail/commercial sector and 
shape goals and policy long term. 
 
The assessment should take into consideration and include: 

§ Population and household increases 
§ Competition 
§ Existing retail firms 
§ Retail leakage/surplus 
§ Retail development in similar cities 
§ Cannibalization  
§ Retail trends 
§ Market viability 
§ Marketing tools for existing and local retailers 
§ Healthcare assessment report 
§ Physician intelligence report  
§ Platform to customize all reports  

 
Scope of Work 
The firm or individual selected will be expected to address the following concerns/issues: 

a) Develop trade area analysis focused on drive time delineation  
b) Develop profiles of customers in the trade area based on buying habits. 
c) Assess the retail potential of selected sites in the City  
d) Recommend  specific retailers and other commercial entities that match the City’s customer 

profile  
e) Match the customer profiles with profiles of specific retailers and other commercial interests 

that would consider the City for a location  
f) Prepare custom marketing packages for each of the retailers and other commercial interests 

identified and identify the individual in the companies who makes location decisions  
g) Make other recommendations as seen pertinent to the assessment  
h) Provide a retail leakage/ surplus analysis 
i) Provide an online database and marketing tool to assist recruitment efforts  
j) Provide on-going support to the City throughout the recruitment   
k) Provide long-term partnership—unlimited access to GIS and staff to help optimize your 

marketing efforts 



l) Provide the information required to attract and retain high value, high wage jobs by analyzing 
how the City benchmarks against competing cities 

m) Provide information to understand the value of residents and surrounding households when 
considered as a workforce 

n) Provide information to understand residents’ access to services, retail, healthcare, municipal 
assets, and other attractive amenities for overall quality of life benchmarks 

 
Benefits of Partnership 
Please confirm ability to provide the following firm/individual differentiators: 
 

1. Personalized Content 
Advance the City’s business recruitment program by receiving personal guidance from 
professional staff and ongoing insight into key industry topics via e-newsletter, webcasts, and 
other interactive tools. 

2. Long-Term Partnership 
Provide unlimited access to consultant staff.  

3. Access Data 
Utilize relationships to access data and develop an actionable program to recruit retail. 

4. Web-Based Deliverable 
Have an application allowing for screen shots, mobility, and ease of use to assist in business 
growth objectives. 

 
Deliverables 
The deliverables should be presented in electronic format and through a password protected website 
that can be accessed and used to either print or email copies of the report or other information, which 
should be updated quarterly. 
 
Inquiries 
Inquiries or requests for information about the City should be directed to: 
 
<Contact Information> 
 
Firms Qualifications 
To be considered, the applicant shall provide a description of experience to include: 

· A summary description of your firm, including size, locations of offices, and areas of specialty;  
· A summary of your ability to provide services as enumerated above;  
· Points of contact, addresses, email addresses, and phone numbers;  
· Biographies of individuals assigned to provide the services;  
· A list of municipal clients being served by the firm on similar projects and client success stories, 

especially from those in the region 
· Demonstrated insight into retail/restaurant/other commercial concepts, decision making 

processes, leadership, and trends. 
· Ability to assist in other residential household level data needs, outside of the scope of this 

project, as a long-term partner. 
 

 
 



Fees and Timeline for Delivery 
Include all fees and costs associated with the completion of this project and a schedule for completion 
of the project. 
 
RFP Submissions 
Proposal and qualifications should be submitted in hard copies to the following by no later than 5:00 pm 
on <Day>, <Date>, <Time Zone>. Proposals should be submitted to: 
 
<Name> 
<Address> 
<City, ZIP> 
 
Proposals postmarked or hand delivered after the designated deadline shall be considered late and 
rejected. 
 
Evaluation 
The staff will review the proposals submitted and make a recommendation to City Council. It is expected 
that the selected firm will begin work shortly after an agreement is executed and the final deliverables 
will be due on a mutually agreed upon date. 
 
 
 
 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB16-29 
SUBJECT: Transportation Benefit District 
2015 Annual Report 

Agenda Item #: AB16-29  
For Agenda of: 3/30/16 
Department: Public Works 
Date Submitted: 3/21/16 

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: 2015 Annual Transportation Benefit District Report 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
This report provides information on the status of the City of Orting Transportation Benefit District and 
fulfills the requirements of the State of Washington and the District for an annual report.  
Transportation Improvement Projects and Costs.  
Chip Seal Streets Project- The District’s highest priority project is to maintain the integrity of its city 
streets with chip seal and fog seal materials and asphalt overlay. The project was funded by the 
District’s revenues obtained from 2015 vehicle license fee.  
Transportation Improvement Expenditures  
To continue the District’s operation, street preparations, attorney costs (if any), engineering costs (if 
any), and advertising costs (publishing of public hearings) were appropriated outside of the TBD 
revenue fund, utilizing the 101 Transportation fund. As of December 31, 2015 expenditures totaled $ 
67,558.89.Expenditures were half of the budgeted $120,000 due to a dispute with Pierce County who 
provided asphalt overlay project; which was completed in September of 2015. A resolution for payment 
was not determined until after period 13, and the expense of $53,903.20 for the asphalt overlay will be 
rolled over to 2016.  
Transportation Improvement Revenues  
Vehicle license fee revenues for 2015 through December 31, 2015 amounted to:  
Vehicle license fees $ 127,808.60  
Investment interest $ 118.16  
Total: $ 127,926.76 
The beginning fund balance was $ 38,507.58. 2015 revenues totaled $127,926.76. 2015 expenditures 
totaled $67,558.89. As of December 31, 2015, the unspent fund balance was $ 98,876.45. 

(Page 1 of 2) 



 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  This report went through the Public Works 
Committee with recommendation of approval. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to approve the 2015 Transportation 
Benefit District Annual Report. 

 



 

 

City of Orting Transportation Benefit District 

2015 Annual Report 

 
 

 
Report Purpose 

This report provides information on the status of the City of Orting Transportation Benefit District (“District” or 
“TBD”) and fulfills the requirements of the State of Washington and the District for an annual report.  Below are 
excerpts from the relevant state law and local documents. 
 
 
RCW 36.73.160(2):  A district shall issue an annual report, indicating the status of transportation improvement 
costs, transportation improvement expenditures, revenues and construction schedules, to the public and to 
newspapers of record in the district.  
 
 
Background 

Cities and counties are authorized to form Transportation Benefit Districts under state law (Chapter 36.73 RCW) 
for the purpose of funding transportation projects.  A Transportation Benefit District may cover an entire city; if 
so, it must be governed by a board comprised of the same members that are on the City Council.  Funding may 
be from various sources, including a vehicle license fee. 
 
In late 2012, the City of Orting City Council adopted Ordinance No. 920 on November 30, 2011 to establish a 
Transportation Benefit District that could fund selected transportation projects.  The new District Board, consist 
of City Council members acting in an independent capacity (per state requirement), held its first meeting on 
December 14, 2011.  The meeting included a public hearing to consider adopting a $20 vehicle license fee, which 
would be collected by the state Department of Licensing.  After the public hearing, the Board voted to adopt the 
$20 fee via City of Orting Transportation Benefit District Resolution No. TBD2012-9 and amended in 2014, 
Resolution No. TBD2014-1. 
 
In 2015, TBD Board held regularly schedule meetings on: 
January 14, March 25, July 8, and October 14th. 
There were no Public Hearings. 
 
Election of Officers:  as stated in Ordinance No. 920 – Section 2(2)a - GOVERNING BOARD: A. The governing 
board (the "board") of the district shall be the Orting city council acting in an ex officio and independent capacity, 
which shall have the authority to exercise the statutory powers set forth in chapter 36.73 Revised Code Of 
Washington. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Orting Transportation Benefit District      Page 2 of 3 
2015 Annual Report 
 
 
 
 
Transportation Improvement Projects and Costs. 
Chip Seal Streets Project 
The District’s highest priority project is to maintain the integrity of its city streets with chip seal and fog seal 
materials and asphalt overlay.   
 
The following streets received chip seal and fog seal: 
 Belfair St SW – 300, 400, 500, 600, 700 blocks 
 Deeded Lane SW – 300, 400, 500, 600 blocks 
 Fairlane St SW – 400 block 
 Ford Lane SW – 500, 600 blocks 
 Grinnell Ave SW – 500, 600, 700, 800 block 
 Leber St NW – 200 block 
 
The following streets received asphalt overlay: 
 Bridge St SE – 100 block 
 River St SE – 100 block 
 Whitesell St NE – 100, 200 blocks 
 
 
The project was funded by the District’s revenues obtained from 2015 vehicle license fee. 
 
 
 
Transportation Improvement Expenditures 

To continue the District’s operation, street preparations, attorney costs (if any), engineering costs (if any), and 
advertising costs (publishing of public hearings) were appropriated outside of the TBD revenue fund, utilizing 
the 101 Transportation fund. 
 
As of December 31, 2015 expenditures totaled $ 67,558.89 
Expenditures were half of the budgeted $120,000 due to a dispute with Pierce County who provided asphalt 
overlay project; which was completed in September of 2015.  A resolution for payment was not determined until 
after period 13, and the expense of $53,903.20 for the asphalt overlay will be rolled over to 2016. 
 
 
 
Transportation Improvement Revenues 

 

Vehicle license fee revenues for 2015 through December 31, 2015 amounted to: 
 Vehicle license fees $ 127,808.60 
 Investment interest $        118.16 
 Total:   $ 127,926.76           
 
 
 



City of Orting Transportation Benefit District      Page 3 of 3 
2015 Annual Report 
 
 
The beginning fund balance was $ 38,507.58.  2015 revenues totaled $127,926.76. 2015 expenditures totaled 
$67,558.89.  As of December 31, 2015, the unspent fund balance was $ 98,876.45.    
 
 
Attachments: (combined map) 

 Chip Seal/Fog Seal Map, streets outlined in red 
 Asphalt Overlay Map, streets outlined in green 
 
 
Construction Schedules 

A contractor was selected and a services agreement executed for construction of chip seal and fog seal was 
approved by the District on June 11, 2015.  Services for chip seal and fog seal were during the month of August 
2015. 
 
Pierce County provided services for construction of the asphalt overlay.  These services were completed between 
September 21, 2015 and September 22, 2015. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2015 TBD Streets Project Map 

 


	Council Agenda 033016
	Council Minutes 030916
	033016 Consent Agenda
	AB16-22
	AB16-22, Closed Record Hearing- Village Green VI
	City Of Orting

	Village Green Division 7 Phase 1 Final

	AB16-23
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	AB16-24
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	AB16-25
	Agenda Bill No. 16-25 Facility Rental Fees
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Resolution No. 2011-12-for reference only
	Resolution No. 2016-17, Facility Rental Fees
	CITY OF ORTING
	WASHINGTON
	RESOLUTION NO. 2016-17
	CITY OF ORTING
	ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:
	Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk
	John P. Long, Jr.
	Kenyon Disend, PLLC
	City Attorney


	AB16-26
	AB16-26, Facility Rental Ordinance
	City Of Orting

	Ordinance No. 2016-982, Facility Rental Ordinance
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO USE RATES FOR USE OF CITY FACILITIES; AMENDING OMC SECTION 3-8-5A, 3-8-5B4; REPEALING SECTION     3-8-5C4; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE
	NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
	ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 30TH DAY OF MARCH, 2016.


	AB16-27
	Agenda Bill No. 16-27, Vehicle Maintenance RFP Vendor Recommendation
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	RFP Decision Process and results
	Combined Tables
	Sheet1


	AB16-28
	Agenda Bill No. 16-28, Economic Development RFP
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Economic Development Request for Proposal

	AB16-29
	Agenda Bill No. 16-29, TBD Annual Report
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	2015 Annual TBD Report




